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1. Question: The RFP doesn't state labor or per diem rates, does the Davis Bacon Act apply?  

 Answer: The Davis Bacon Act does not apply to this procurement. 

2. Question: At the meeting it was mentioned that the Davis Bacon Act did not apply to this contract; does 
the McNamara-O'Hara Service Contract Act (SCA)or any other federal minimum wage and benefit 
provision apply? 

 Answer: Federal minimum wage and benefit laws apply to all contracted work in the US.  

3. Question: For clarification purposes, does Phase or Stage I of the investigation include establishing the 
grid, excavation of the initial 24 test units, and production of management summary and/or final report?  

 Answer:  The initial stage of the investigations includes the establishment of the grid, excavation of the 
initial 24 test units, geomorphological consultation, consultation with the VDHR, and the production of 
the management summary. 

4. Question: If features are identified and exposed entirely in the initial test units, do we bisect or excavate 
them at this point? 

Answer: Features should be excavated as identified. 

5.  Question: Are soil samples collected from the initial test units? 

 Answer: Appropriate samples should be collected. 

6. Question: Does Phase or Stage II include the excavation of all the additional test units, apart from the 
initial 24, mechanical stripping, feature excavation, and production of a report of the findings? 

 Answer: Stage 2 includes the completion of the all remaining tasks noted in the RFP. 

7. Question: Page 11 of the 2013 Final Treatment Plan...All features must be excavated - does this 
include both natural and cultural features? 

 Answer: This refers to cultural features only. 

8. Question: Section VII2 10 mentions Airport Authority will not provide equipment. Should we assume 
that we will provide equipment and operator, ES controls, permitting etc for the Mechanical Stripping?  

 Answer: Yes. 

9. Question: We need further clarification of the Hand Excavations section on Page 10 of the Treatment 
Plan, which calls for the initial excavation of 24 test units within Loci 1 and 2, followed by the excavation 
of additional test units based on the results of the geophysical investigation and judgment of the project 
archeologist.  

 Answer: Geophysical investigations are not a mandatory component of the RFP. 



10. Question: Are the initial 24 test units part of Stage I of Services and the remaining 115 to 158 - see 
question 4 - test units under Stage II of Services?  

 Answer: The initial 24 test units are included in the total. 

11. Question: Are the initial 24 (1 by 1 m) test units included within the total number to be excavated within 
Loci 1 and 2 and the Set Aside area, or in addition to the estimated 115 or 158 squares described in the 
same paragraph? 

 Answer: The initial 24 test units are included in the total. 

12. Question: The English and metric area measurements are not equivalent. Locus 2 measures 248 sq. 
feet, or is 23 m sq. - not 46 m sq as stated - and the Set Aside Area contains 215 sq. feet or 20 m sq - 
not 40 m sq as stated. If the square footage is correct this would roughly work out to a total of 115, 1-
m2 test units during the Phases 1 and 2 portions of the investigation as described in the Treatment 
Plan. If the square meters measurement is correct, this would roughly work out to 158, 1-meter test 
units. Which of the two is the correct measurement on which to base our budget? 

 Answer: In this instance the square footage measurements are correct. 

13. Question: Apart from reference on P.10, geophysical investigations are not mentioned elsewhere in the 
Data Recovery Methodology of the Treatment Plan. Are geophysical investigations required? If so, 
when should they be conducted - Phase I or Phase II and what techniques need to be employed? If not 
part of the Data Recovery, how should the placement of the remaining excavations be determined? 

 Answer: Geophysical investigations are not a required component of the RFP. 

14. Question: Does the Ap need to be excavated in arbitrary 10 cm levels?  

 Answer: The Ap does not need to be excavated in 10-cm levels. 

15. Question: Public Outreach is required in the MOA and mentioned in the 2013 Final Treatment Plan, but 
not within the solicitation Scope of Work. Should we budget for this under Phase I or Phase II of this 
solicitation? 

Answer: Budgeting for the Public Outreach effort included in the 2013 Final Treatment Plan should be 
covered under Phase II/Stage 2 of the investigations. 

16.  Will we be responsible for all production and publications costs for the pamphlets, website design etc.? 

Answer: Yes. Budgeting for the Public Outreach effort included in the 2013 Final Treatment Plan should 
be covered under Stage 2 of the investigations. 

17. Question: For the mechanical excavations, will the MWAA be providing the backhoe and operator or 
should a cost for backhoe and operator rental be included in the proposal? 

Answer: All appropriate costs for excavation should be included in the proposal including any 
equipment and/or operator costs necessary to perform the work.  

18. Question: In reference to Attachment 02, Revised Amendment One, Evaluation Criteria and Proposal 
Submission Requirements, Minimum Qualifications, Section C.ii - Are letters of intent required for the 
radiocarbon dating firm, palynologist, and other specialized analysts? Or is listing them as 
subconsultants in the Representations and Certifications Section IV-4, 09 adequate?  

Answer: Listing the firms as subconsultants is adequate for the proposal. 

19. Question: Do resumes need to be double spaced? Or are they excluded from the 30-page limit? 

Answer: Resumes do not need to be double spaced and do not count against the 30-page limit. 



20. Question: Also, for Exhibits and Samples, which are not part of the page limits, would you prefer a full 
archeological report as a sample, or just project summary sheets? 

Answer: Project summary sheets are acceptable for the representative exhibits and samples.   

21. Question: The schedule in the 2013 Final Treatment Plan for report production -6 months to write a 
report- conflicts with the Statement of Work, should we assume the current solicitation schedule takes 
priority? 

Answer: Current solicitation takes priority and indicates the current schedule requirements for this RFP. 

22. Question:  In the RFP (Attachment 2, page 3) is the statement that "exhibits and samples of work" will 
not count toward the 50 page limit. Are examples of previous work desired? 

Answer: Project summary sheets are acceptable as exhibits and samples of previous work and do not 
count against the 30 page limit. 

23. Question: What will the security requirements for personnel entering the site be? Will we have to obtain 
badges or be vetted? How long is that likely to take? 

Answer: This area is not part of the AOA and does not require full security badging requirements for 
access.  Access to the area will likely require entry through an unmanned gate that requires a key. 
Upon contract award, arrangements will be made for reporting, escort, and key access for the selected 
contractor.          

24. Question: Air Operations permits for drivers: can you provide requirements, time frame for processing, 
and costs? 

 Answer:  Because the work areas outlined in this RFP do not require full badging requirements or 
permits to drive in the AOA, it is not anticipated that drivers of small light-duty work vehicles will require 
special licensing requirements for the performance  of this work.   

25. Question: Final Archaeological Resources Treatment Plan has been accepted as part of the MOA; 
does this mean that alternative sampling approaches will be viewed as non-responsive? 

Answer: The current treatment plan has been submitted as an appendix to the MOA, Alternatives to the 
existing treatment plan would have to be made only in consultation with VDHR, FAA, and MWAA.  It is 
the proposer’s sole responsibility to ensure that any alternative sampling approaches are acceptable to 
VDHR, the Airports Authority, and FAA.  

26. Does the airport have preferred and approved construction contractors with Gradalls or backhoes that 
we can subcontract for the mechanical excavation, or are we free to subcontract with any viable 
contractor? 

Answer: Proposers are free to use subcontractors that meet the necessary qualifications. 

27. Question: What are the current ground conditions at the site, specifically the vegetation and ground 
cover? 

Answer: Area can be viewed using Google Earth or other recent publicly available aerial photography. 

28. Question: Are there any restrictions on types of mechanized equipment that can be used at the site? 

Answer: Equipment must meet provisions outlined in FAA regulations outlined in 14 CFR Part 77 and 
may require submittal of FAA notification form 7460-1 prior to mechanized excavation commencing.  



29. Question: The notation "m2" is used several times in the Treatment Plan to describe the size of the loci 
and site area. It is assumed that these values are in square meters, not meters squared. Is this correct? 

Answer: Square meters is the correct reading. 

30. Question: Page 10 of the Treatment Plan states that Locus 2 is 248 square feet in size. It then notes 
that 46 square meters of hand excavations are required for Locus 2 (1 percent). One percent of 248 
square feet is 23 square meters, not 46 square meters. Are 23 1x1-meter units required for Locus 2 
instead of 46?  

Answer: The 1% sample for Locus 2 is 23 square meters  

31. Question:  The RFP lists the price unit for mechanical stripping and feature excavation as one acre, 
with a maximum of four acres (entire site). The Treatment Plan notes that a maximum of 1,800 square 
meters of mechanical excavation would be required, including 1,400 square meters for Locus 1 and 
400 square meters for Locus 2. This totals less than half an acre (1 acre is 4,046 square meters). Can 
unit pricing for mechanical excavation be given in square meters? For example, could we use 400 
square meters as the pricing unit? 

 Answer: Unit pricing should remain being provided in acres, but conversions to square meters can also 
be indicated.  

32. Question:  Can we use a set number of features for the unit pricing for feature excavation instead of 
one acre? Density of features is likely to be highly variable throughout the site. Is a block of 10 features 
an acceptable unit price? 

 Answer: Unit pricing should remain being provided in acres, but conversions to square meters can also 
be indicated.  

33. Question:  The Treatment Plan notes that the focus of the research and data recovery will be the Early 
Archaic deposits, the intact portions of which will be in the Bw horizons below the plowzone. What are 
the recovery expectations for the plowzone materials? Is sampling of the plowzone material 
acceptable? If so, what percentage of the plowzone material should be sampled? 

Answer: All of the plowzone should be excavated and screened and artifacts collected. 

34. Question:  The Page I-1 Block 8 says you require one original and 7 copies. Amendment 1 (Attachment 
2 Revised) says you want an original and 8 copies of the technical proposal. Does Amendment 1 
supersede Block 8 on Page I-1?  

35. Answer: Providing one original and 7 copies is acceptable. 

36. Question: Why is 4 acres used as the unit for estimating cost in Phase 2 mechanical excavations? The 
total area of the two loci as calculated from the Final Archeological Resources Treatment Plan (page 6) 
is, at 2.3 acres, smaller than the 4 acre pricing unit. Further, if only at most 19% of the site will be 
exposed by stripping, the amount subject to stripping is 0.44 acres, a tenth of the estimated quantity in 
the Price Schedule. The use of 4 acres could lead to excessive cost estimates for your project. 

Answer: As indicated in the RFP, 4 acres is a placeholder and subject to SHPO concurrence in order to 
obtain unit pricing. Figure will be adjusted as necessary prior to issuance of NTP for Stage 2 activities. 

37. Will previously recovered radiocarbon samples be available for dating? 

Answer: Proposers should not assume the previously recovered radiocarbon samples will be available 
for dating, however they will be provided if possible.  



38. Does the lithic analysis have to use the same system as proposed in the Treatment Plan? 

Answer: The treatment plan has been submitted as an appendix to the MOA and modifications would 
entail consultation with the VDHR, FAA, and MWAA. 

39. Are we correct in assuming that the schedule in the solicitation supersedes the one in the Treatment 
Plan?  

 Answer: Yes. 

40. Question: Are we correct in assuming that if features are found during the hand excavations, they 
would be excavated in Phase 1 to determine whether they contain evidence supporting or denying the 
Early Archaic date of the deposits? 

Features should be investigated as they are encountered. 

41. Question: Can an alternative data recovery strategy be proposed or is that outlined in the Treatment 
Plan the only one that can be used for the proposal? 

Answer: The current treatment plan has been submitted as an appendix to the MOA, Alternatives to the 
existing treatment plan would have to be made only in consultation with VDHR, FAA, and MWAA.  It is 
the proposer’s sole responsibility to ensure that any alternative data recovery strategies are acceptable 
to VDHR, the Airports Authority, and FAA.    

42. The initial phase of fieldwork references 135 square meters of hand excavation. Is that a fixed amount 
of meterage or an "up to" limit that need not be reached if the results of the first 24 test units suggest 
that less additional hand excavation will be necessary? 

Answer: Stage 2 of the investigations will be based upon the data collected during the initial test unit 
excavations, geomorphological consultation, and discussions with the VDHR.  The current treatment 
plan has been submitted as an appendix to the MOA, Alternatives to the existing treatment plan would 
have to be made only in consultation with VDHR, FAA, and MWAA. 

 


